

11TH MEETING OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  
Ciudad Trujillo  
20-23 September 1950

Topic 15: CONSIDERATION OF THE PROPOSED RULES OF PROCEDURES AND  
OF DEBATE OF THE XIII PAN AMERICAN SANITARY CONFERENCE.

While Pan American Sanitary Conferences have been held for nearly half a century, the forthcoming Conference will be the first held under the terms of the Constitution of the Pan American Sanitary Organization of 1947 and the resolutions taken by the Directing Council acting under the directives and authority given to it by the XII Pan American Sanitary Conference.

To give expression to the present situation the attached draft of the Rules of Procedure and of Debate (Document CSP13/5) has been prepared.

In order to expedite consideration by the Conference this document is herewith submitted to the Executive Committee for its consideration.

11a. REUNION DEL COMITE EJECUTIVO  
Ciudad Trujillo  
20-23 septiembre 1950

Tema 15: CONSIDERACION DEL PROYECTO DE REGLAMENTO INTERNO Y DE  
DEBATES DE LA XIII CONFERENCIA SANITARIA PANAMERICANA

Aunque se han celebrado Conferencias Sanitarias Panamericanas durante casi medio siglo, la próxima Conferencia será la primera que se celebra de conformidad con las estipulaciones de la Constitución de la Organización Sanitaria Panamericana de 1947, y las resoluciones aprobadas por el Consejo Directivo de acuerdo con las instrucciones y autorización que le concediera la XII Conferencia Sanitaria Panamericana.

A fin de ajustarse a la situación actual, se ha preparado el adjunto proyecto de Reglamento Interno y de Debates (Documento CSP13/5).

Con el objeto de facilitar la discusión de este documento por la Conferencia, el mismo es sometido a la consideración del Comité Ejecutivo.

PROPOSED RULES OF PROCEDURE AND OF DEBATE  
OF THE  
XIII PAN AMERICAN SANITARY CONFERENCE  
REGIONAL COMMITTEE, WORLD HEALTH ORGANIZATION

PART I

MEMBERS AND ASSOCIATE MEMBERS

Art. 1- The Pan American Sanitary Conference shall be composed of delegates of Member Governments of the Pan American Sanitary Organization.

Art. 2- Delegates of governments not having their seats within the Western Hemisphere, which

- (a) either by reason of their Constitution consider certain territories or groups of territories in the Western Hemisphere as part of their national territory; or
- (b) are responsible for the conduct of the international relations of territories or groups of territories within the Western Hemisphere,

shall participate on the same basis as the American Republics in meetings of the Conference.

Art. 3- The non-self-governing territories in the Western Hemisphere shall be considered Associate Members of the Pan American Sanitary Organization.

Art. 4- Each Government shall be represented by not more than three delegates, one of whom shall be designated as Chief Delegate. Delegates may have alternates and advisers. Each Delegation shall include specialists in Public Health, preferably members of the National Departments of Health.

Art. 5- The Director of the Pan American Sanitary Bureau shall be a member ex officio of the Pan American Sanitary Conference without the right to vote.

PROYECTO DE REGLAMENTO INTERNO Y DE DEBATES  
DE LA  
XIII CONFERENCIA SANITARIA PANAMERICANA  
COMITE REGIONAL, ORGANIZACION MUNDIAL DE LA SALUD

PARTE I

MIEMBROS Y MIEMBROS ASOCIADOS

Art. 1- La Conferencia Sanitaria Panamericana estará constituida por delegados de los Gobiernos Miembros de la Organización Sanitaria Panamericana.

Art. 2- Los delegados de los Gobiernos que no tengan su sede en el Hemisferio Occidental, pero que:

- (a) por razón de su Constitución consideran determinados territorios o grupos de territorios en el Hemisferio Occidental como parte de su territorio nacional; o
- (b) son responsables de la dirección de las relaciones internacionales de territorios o grupos de territorios en el Hemisferio Occidental,

participarán sobre la misma base que las Repúblicas Americanas en las reuniones de la Conferencia.

Art. 3- Los territorios del Hemisferio Occidental sin gobierno propio serán considerados Miembros Asociados de la Organización Sanitaria Panamericana.

Art. 4- Cada Gobierno estará representado por no más de tres delegados, uno de los cuales será designado delegado jefe. Los delegados podran tener suplentes y asesores. Cada delegación incluirá especialistas en salud pública, de preferencia miembros de los Departamentos Nacionales de Sanidad.

Art. 5- El Director de la Oficina Sanitaria Panamericana será miembro ex officio de la Conferencia Sanitaria Panamericana, sin derecho a voto.

PARTE II

FUNCIONARIOS

Art. 6- La Conferencia elegirá un Presidente y dos Vicepresidentes, quienes desempeñarán sus cargos hasta que sean elegidos sus sucesores.

PART II

OFFICERS

Art. 6- The Conference shall elect a Chairman and two Vice-Chairmen who shall hold office until their successors are elected.

Art. 7- The Secretary General of the Pan American Sanitary Bureau shall act as Secretary of the Conference.

Art. 8- The Chairman shall preside over the sessions of the Conference and execute any other functions assigned to him under these Rules of Procedure.

Art. 9- In the absence of the Chairman one of the Vice-Chairmen shall preside and if all these officers should be absent the Conference shall appoint one of the delegates to preside over the session.

Art. 10- The Chairman or a Vice-Chairman acting as Chairman shall not vote but may appoint another member of his delegation to act as the delegate of his Government in plenary sessions.

Art. 11- In the event that neither the Chairman nor any of the Vice-Chairmen are present at the opening of the Conference the Chairman of the next preceding meeting of the Directing Council shall preside.

Art. 12- The order of precedence of the delegates shall be established by lot during the preliminary plenary session.

PART III

MEETINGS AND AGENDA

Art. 13- The Conference shall normally meet once in four years in the country determined at its immediately preceding meeting, on the date fixed by the host Government after consultation with the Director.

Art. 14- The meetings of the Conference shall be convoked by the Director of the Pan American Sanitary Bureau after the date has been set in accordance with the provisions of the preceding article.

Art. 15- A majority of the members participating and entitled to vote in the Conference shall constitute a quorum.

Art. 16- Unless otherwise determined the sessions of the Conference shall be public.

Art. 17- Each Member State shall be limited to one vote in the Conference. Delegates of Governments referred to in Article 2 of these Rules of Procedure shall be entitled to one vote each on behalf of all their territories in the Western Hemisphere.

Art. 7- El Secretario General de la Oficina Sanitaria Panamericana actuará como Secretario de la Conferencia.

Art. 8- El Presidente dirigirá las sesiones de la Conferencia y desempeñará cualquiera otras funciones que le confiere este Reglamento.

Art. 9- En ausencia del Presidente, actuará uno de los Vicepresidentes, y en ausencia de todos estos funcionarios, la Conferencia nombrará uno de los delegados para que presida la sesión.

Art. 10- El Presidente o un Vicepresidente en funciones de Presidente no votará, pero podrá nombrar a otro miembro de su delegación para que actúe como delegado de su Gobierno en las sesiones plenarias.

Art. 11- En caso de que ni el Presidente ni ninguno de los Vicepresidentes se encuentren presentes al inaugurarse la Conferencia, presidirá el Presidente de la reunión anterior del Consejo Directivo.

Art. 12- El orden de precedencia de los delegados se establecerá por sorteo durante la sesión plenaria preliminar.

### PARTE III

#### REUNIONES Y AGENDA

Art. 13- La Conferencia se reunirá normalmente cada cuatro años en el país elegido en la reunión anterior inmediata, en la fecha fijada por el Gobierno sede previa consulta con el Director.

Art. 14- El Director convocará las reuniones de la Conferencia después de haberse fijado la fecha de conformidad con las estipulaciones del artículo anterior.

Art. 15- Una mayoría de los miembros participantes y con derecho a voto en la Conferencia constituirá quorum.

Art. 16- A menos que se determine lo contrario, las sesiones de la Conferencia serán públicas.

Art. 17- Cada Estado Miembro sólo tendrá derecho a un voto en la Conferencia. Los delegados de los Gobiernos a que se refiere el Artículo 2 del presente Reglamento Interno tendrán derecho a un voto cada uno por todos sus respectivos territorios en el Hemisferio Occidental.

Art. 18- Las resoluciones serán adoptadas con el voto afirmativo de la mayoría de los Estados presentes y votantes. Para los efectos de este Reglamento, se entenderá por "presentes y votantes" los Estados que emitan un voto, afirmativo o negativo. Los Estados que se abstengan de votar serán considerados como no votantes.

Art. 19- Los Miembros Asociados tendrán derecho a:

- (a) participar en las deliberaciones de las sesiones plenarias de la Conferencia, sin derecho a voto; y

Art. 18- A Resolution shall be adopted by the affirmative votes of the majority of States present and voting. For the purpose of these Rules, the phrase "present and voting" means States casting affirmative or negative votes. States which abstain from voting are considered non-voting.

Art. 19- Associate Members are entitled:

- (a) to participate in the deliberations of the plenary sessions of the Conference without the right to vote; and
- (b) to participate on the same basis as Members, subject to the limitations mentioned in (a) in those matters related to procedure, such as presenting motions, amendments, points of order, etc.

Art. 20- The Agenda for the meetings of the Conference shall be prepared by the Director of the Pan American Sanitary Bureau and approved in advance by the Executive Committee.

Art. 21- The Provisional Agenda shall include:

- (a) any subject suggested by the Conference at its previous meeting;
- (b) any subject proposed by the Directing Council at its previous meetings;
- (c) any subject proposed by the Members, Associate Members or Organizations entitled to propose subjects, not later than 21 days prior to the meeting except in those cases considered as emergencies by the Director of the Pan American Sanitary Bureau.

Art. 22- Supplementary items may be added to the Agenda during any session of the Conference if two thirds of the Governments participating and entitled to vote approve.

Art. 23- The Provisional Agenda and all documents related thereto shall be sent to Members, Associate Members and Organizations entitled to representation, at least 14 days prior to the meeting. Copies of these documents shall be forwarded to national health authorities.

Art. 24- To allow for proper discussion of the items on the Agenda the Director of the Pan American Sanitary Bureau shall formulate a program for the sessions.

Art. 25- The Conference may revise or modify the program at each meeting.

- (b) participar sobre la misma base que los Miembros, sujetos únicamente a las limitaciones mencionadas en el inciso (a), en todos los asuntos relacionados con procedimiento, tales como presentar proposiciones, enmiendas, mociones de orden, etc.

Art. 20- La Agenda de la Conferencia será preparada por el Director de la Oficina Sanitaria Panamericana y aprobada previamente por el Comité Ejecutivo.

Art. 21- La Agenda Provisional comprenderá:

- (a) cualquier tema propuesto por la Conferencia en su reunión anterior;
- (b) cualquier tema propuesto por el Consejo Directivo en sus reuniones anteriores;
- (c) cualquier tema propuesto por los Miembros, Miembros Asociados u Organizaciones con derecho a proponer tópicos, a más tardar 21 días antes de la reunión, excepto en aquellos casos considerados urgentes por el Director de la Oficina Sanitaria Panamericana.

Art. 22- Podrán agregarse temas suplementarios a la Agenda durante cualquiera sesión de la Conferencia, de aprobarlo dos terceras partes de los Gobiernos participantes y con derecho a voto.

Art. 23- La Agenda Provisional y todos los documentos relativos a la misma serán remitidos a los Miembros, Miembros Asociados y Organizaciones con derecho de representación, por lo menos 14 días antes de celebrarse la reunión. Copias de dichos documentos serán enviadas a las Autoridades Nacionales de Sanidad.

Art. 24- Para la adecuada discusión de los puntos de la Agenda, el Director de la Oficina Sanitaria Panamericana formulará un programa para las sesiones.

Art. 25- La Conferencia podrá revisar o modificar el programa en cada reunión.

Art. 26- La Sesión Plenaria Inaugural se celebrará en el lugar y en la fecha fijados por el Gobierno del país sede.

Art. 27- Las sesiones plenarias se dedicarán a asuntos de interés general, y a la discusión y aprobación de los informes de las diferentes comisiones. A cada relator de comisión se concederán hasta treinta minutos para la presentación de su informe. Podrán discutir estos informes únicamente los Gobiernos Miembros cuyos delegados no participaron en los trabajos de la comisión respectiva, o que habiendo participado presentaron un informe formal de minoría.



Art. 26- The formal Inaugural Plenary Session shall be held at the place and on the date set by the Government of the host country.

Art. 27- The plenary sessions shall be devoted to matters of general interest and to the discussion and approval of the reports of the various committees. The rapporteur of each committee shall be limited to thirty minutes in the presentation of his report. These reports shall be open for discussion only by those Member Governments whose delegates did not participate in the work of the committee concerned, or who having participated present a formal minority report.

Art. 28- The Director of the Pan American Sanitary Bureau shall report to the Conference on the technical, administrative and financial implications, if any, of all Agenda items submitted to the Conference before they are considered in a plenary session. No proposal shall be considered in the absence of such a report unless the Conference decides otherwise in the case of emergencies.

Art. 29- The Final Act shall be read and signed at the Formal Closing Plenary Session.

#### PART IV

##### COMMITTEES

Art. 30- A Committee of Credentials, consisting of two delegates of as many Members and a representative of the Director of the Pan American Sanitary Bureau, shall be appointed by the Conference at its Opening Session. This Committee shall examine the credentials of delegates of Members and Associate Members and report to the Conference thereon without delay.

Art. 31- The Conference shall establish at each meeting a General Committee and such other committees as it may consider necessary for the study of the appropriate items on the agenda. The Chairmen of these committees shall be elected by the Conference.

Art. 32- The General Committee shall consist of the Chairman, two Vice-Chairmen and the Secretary of the Conference, the Chairmen of the main committees, and the Director of the Pan American Sanitary Bureau or his representative.

Art. 33- The General Committee shall:

- (a) decide the time and place of all plenary sessions and of all meetings of committees, established at plenary sessions during the meetings;
- (b) determine the order of business at each plenary session;
- (c) propose to the Conference the allocation to committees of items on the agenda;

Art. 28- El Director de la Oficina Sanitaria Panamericana informará a la Conferencia sobre los problemas técnicos, administrativos y económicos, si los hubiere, que impliquen los temas de la Agenda presentados a la Conferencia, antes de ser considerados en sesión plenaria. Ninguna proposición podrá ser considerada sin el informe respectivo, salvo que la Conferencia decida lo contrario en caso de emergencia.

Art. 29- El Acta Final será leída y firmada en la Sesión Plenaria Formal de Clausura.

#### PARTE IV

##### COMISIONES

Art. 30- En la sesión de apertura la Conferencia nombrará una Comisión de Credenciales, integrada por dos delegados del mismo número de Miembros y un representante del Director de la Oficina Sanitaria Panamericana. Esta Comisión examinará las credenciales de los delegados de los Miembros y de los Miembros Asociados e informará sin demora a la Conferencia.

Art. 31- La Conferencia nombrará en cada reunión una Comisión General y cualesquiera otras comisiones que considere necesarias para el estudio de los temas apropiados de la agenda. Los Presidentes de estas comisiones serán elegidos por la Conferencia.

Art. 32- La Comisión General estará integrada por el Presidente, dos Vicepresidentes, el Secretario de la Conferencia, los Presidentes de las comisiones principales y el Director de la Oficina Sanitaria Panamericana, o su representante.

Art. 33- La Comisión General deberá:

- (a) determinar la hora y lugar de todas las sesiones plenarias y de todas las reuniones de las comisiones nombradas durante las sesiones plenarias;
- (b) determinar el orden de los puntos a tratar en cada sesión plenaria;
- (c) proponer a la Conferencia la asignación de los puntos de la agenda a las comisiones;
- (d) coordinar los trabajos de todas las comisiones nombradas en las sesiones plenarias;
- (e) fijar la fecha de clausura;
- (f) facilitar por todos los medios el despacho ordenado de los asuntos de la reunión.

Art. 34- Cada delegación tendrá derecho a estar representada en cada comisión principal. Los suplentes y asesores podrán acompañar a los representantes en las reuniones de las comisiones.

- (d) coordinate the work of all committees established at plenary sessions;
- (e) fix the date of adjournment;
- (f) otherwise facilitate the orderly dispatch of the business of the meeting.

Art. 34- Each delegation shall be entitled to be represented on each main committee. Representatives may be accompanied at meetings of committees by alternates and advisers.

Art. 35- Each main committee shall elect a Vice-Chairman and a rapporteur, who shall submit to the plenary session for discussion the report and conclusions reached by the committee.

Art. 36- Associate Members shall participate with the right to vote in the committees of the Conference, except on matters dealing with administration, finances and the Constitution.

Art. 37- The Conference or any main committee may establish working parties to consider and report upon particular subjects. Alternates and advisers may be appointed to any such working parties as may be established.

Art. 38- The reports of all committees, before being submitted to a plenary session for final disposition shall be referred to the General Committee, or to a Drafting Committee appointed by it for coordinating and editing. Such reports, including draft resolutions, shall, after being examined by the General Committee, be circulated, in so far as practicable at least 24 hours in advance to the plenary meeting at which they will be considered.

## PART V

### DEBATES

Art. 39- Any member may request a roll-call vote.

Art. 40- Parts of a proposal shall be voted on separately if any member so requests.

Art. 41- If two or more amendments are moved to a proposal, the amendment furthest removed in substance to the original proposal shall be voted on first, then the amendment next furthest removed until all amendments have been put to a vote.

Art. 42- When an amendment revises, adds or deletes from a proposal, the amendment shall be voted on first, and if it is adopted the amended proposal shall then be voted on.

Art. 35- Cada comisión principal elegirá un Vicepresidente y un Relator, quien presentará a la sesión plenaria, para discusión, el informe y las conclusiones de la Comisión.

Art. 36- Los Miembros Asociados participarán, con derecho a voto, en las comisiones de la Conferencia, con excepción de las cuestiones relativas a administración, finanzas y la Constitución.

Art. 37- La Conferencia o cualquiera de las comisiones principales podrán establecer grupos de trabajo para estudiar e informar sobre un tema particular. Los suplentes y asesores podrán ser nombrados para formar parte de cualquiera de los grupos de trabajo que se establezcan.

Art. 38- Los informes de todas las comisiones serán sometidos a la Comisión General o a la Comisión de Redacción que ésta designe, para su coordinación y redacción, antes de presentarlos a una sesión plenaria para consideración definitiva. Después de ser examinados por la Comisión General, dichos informes, incluso los proyectos de resoluciones, serán distribuidos de ser posible 24 horas antes de celebrarse la sesión plenaria en que vayan a ser considerados.

#### PARTE V

##### DEBATES

Art. 39- Cualquier Miembro podrá solicitar que la votación sea nominal.

Art. 40- Las proposiciones presentadas se someterán a votación por partes, a solicitud de cualquier miembro.

Art. 41- De presentarse dos o más enmiendas a una proposición, estas enmiendas serán sometidas a votación comenzando con la que presente las mayores divergencias substanciales con la proposición original, y continuando en esta forma hasta terminar con la que presente la menor diferencia.

Art. 42- Cuando una enmienda revise, adicione o suprima parte de una proposición, la enmienda se someterá primero a votación, y de aprobarse se someterá entonces a votación la proposición enmendada.

Art. 43- Cualquier Representante podrá presentar una moción de orden durante la discusión de cualquier punto, la cual resolverá inmediatamente el Presidente.

Art. 44- Un Miembro podrá solicitar en cualquier momento que se cierre el debate. Esta moción gozará de prioridad, y se someterá a votación inmediatamente después de concederle a un Miembro la oportunidad de hablar en pro, y a otro en contra de ella.

Art. 45- El Presidente podrá en cualquier momento someter a votación la clausura del debate. De aprobarse esta moción, el Presidente dará por terminado el debate.

Art. 43- During the discussion of any subject any Representative may rise to a point of order, which shall be resolved immediately by the Chairman.

Art. 44- A Member may at any time move the closure of the debate. His motion shall be given priority and submitted to a vote immediately after one Member has been given the opportunity to speak in favor and another against the motion.

Art. 45- The Chairman may at any time call for a vote to close the debate. If this motion is approved, the Chairman shall declare the debate closed.

Art. 46- The Conference may limit the time allotted to each speaker.

Art. 47- The right to speak shall be limited to Representatives of Members and Associate Members of the Pan American Sanitary Organization, to Observers of Organizations entitled to representation, and to the Director of the Pan American Sanitary Bureau as ex officio Member. However, the Chairman may grant the right to speak to alternates and advisers or to the officers of the Pan American Sanitary Bureau, for information regarding the subject under discussion.

#### PART VI

##### ELECTION OF THE DIRECTOR

Art. 48- In accordance with Article 4E of the Constitution of the Pan American Sanitary Organization, the Conference shall elect the Director of the Pan American Sanitary Bureau by a two-thirds vote of the countries represented and with a right to vote. Acting as Regional Committee of the World Health Organization and in conformity with Articles 49 and 52 of the Constitution of the World Health Organization, the Conference shall submit the name of the person so elected to the Executive Board of WHO for appointment as Regional Director.

Art. 49- The person elected in accordance with Article 48 of these Rules will assume office as of February 1st of the year following his election.

#### PART VII

##### FINAL ACT AND RECORDS

Art. 50- The General Committee shall prepare the Final Act which shall include all matters on the Agenda approved by the Conference.

Art. 51- At the Closing Session the Delegates of States entitled to vote shall sign the Final Act.

Art. 46- La Conferencia podrá limitar el tiempo concedido a cada orador.

Art. 47- Sólo se concederá el derecho de hacer uso de la palabra a los representantes de los Miembros y Miembros Asociados de la Organización Sanitaria Panamericana, a los observadores de Organizaciones con derecho a representación, y al Director de la Oficina Sanitaria Panamericana en su calidad de miembro ex officio. Sin embargo, el Presidente podrá conceder el derecho de hacer uso de la palabra a los suplentes, asesores y representantes, o a los funcionarios de la Oficina Sanitaria Panamericana, para que faciliten información sobre el tema a discusión.

## PARTE VI

### ELECCION DEL DIRECTOR

Art. 48- De acuerdo con el Artículo 4-E de la Constitución de la Organización Sanitaria Panamericana, la Conferencia elegirá al Director de la Oficina Sanitaria Panamericana por dos tercios de los votos de los países representados y con derecho a voto. En su calidad de Comité Regional de la Organización Mundial de la Salud, y de conformidad con los Artículos 49 y 52 de la Constitución de la Organización Mundial de la Salud, la Conferencia someterá al Consejo Ejecutivo de la Organización Mundial de la Salud el nombre de la persona así elegida para su nombramiento como Director Regional.

Art. 49- La persona elegida de conformidad con el Artículo 48 de este Reglamento asumirá el cargo el día 1º de febrero del año que siga a su elección.

## PARTE VII

### ACTA FINAL Y ACTAS

Art. 50- La Comisión General preparará el Acta Final, la cual incluirá todos los puntos de la agenda aprobados por la Conferencia.

Art. 51- Los Delegados de los Estados con derecho a voto firmarán el Acta Final en la sesión de clausura.

Art. 52- La Oficina Sanitaria Panamericana remitirá a cada signatario una copia certificada del Acta Final.

Art. 53- Se prepararán y publicarán tan pronto como sea posible transcripciones literales de todas las sesiones plenarias.

Art. 54- Tan pronto como sea posible después de la clausura de cada reunión, se reproducirán en multígrafo o imprimirán, por lo menos en español e inglés, los resúmenes de las actas de las sesiones y el Acta Final, y el Director remitirá copias de dicho material a los Miembros, Miembros Asociados, y Organizaciones con las cuales la Organización Sanitaria Panamericana haya celebrado convenios formales.

Art. 52- The Pan American Sanitary Bureau shall send a certified copy of the Final Act to each signatory.

Art. 53- Verbatim records of all plenary sessions shall be kept and published as soon as practicable.

Art. 54- As soon as possible after the closing of each meeting copies of all summary records, and of the Final Act shall be multi-graphed or printed at least in Spanish and English, and transmitted by the Director of the Pan American Sanitary Bureau to Members, Associate Members, and Organizations with which the Pan American Sanitary Organization has entered into formal agreements.

#### PART VIII

##### OFFICIAL LANGUAGES

Art. 55- The official languages of the meetings shall be English, French, Portuguese and Spanish.

#### PART IX

##### MODIFICATIONS

Art. 56- These Rules may be amended by resolution of the Conference when the nature of the discussions or of the problems makes it necessary.

Art. 57- All matters not provided for in these Rules may be resolved directly by the Conference.

PARTE VIII

IDIOMAS OFICIALES

Art. 55- Los idiomas oficiales de las reuniones serán español, francés, inglés y portugués.

PARTE IX

MODIFICACIONES

Art. 56- Este Reglamento podrá ser modificado de acuerdo con las resoluciones de la Conferencia cuando el sentido de las discusiones o los problemas lo hagan necesario.

Art. 57- Todos los asuntos no previstos por este Reglamento serán resueltos directamente por la Conferencia.

e